



State of Nevada  
**CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS BOARD**

6628 Sky Pointe Drive, Suite 104  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89131  
Phone: (702) 489-8787 Fax: (702) 489-8788  
Website: [www.crptr.state.nv.us](http://www.crptr.state.nv.us) Email: [NVCCR@aol.com](mailto:NVCCR@aol.com)

**SEVERIN CARLSON, Esq.** – Chairman  
**LORI JUDD** – Vice Chairperson  
**SHERRILL GROTHEER** – Board Member

**Notice of Workshop to Solicit Comments on Proposed Permanent Regulations**

The State of Nevada Certified Court Reporters Board is proposing the amendments of permanent regulations pertaining to chapter 656 of the Nevada Administrative Code. The workshop is set for:

**Thursday, November 3, 2011 @ 5:00pm**

**Las Vegas, Nevada (Video Conference)**

Esquire Deposition Services, LLC  
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Suite 770  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102  
Tel: 702-382-8778 Contact: Gloria Perry

**Reno, Nevada**

Aevos Office Suites  
10775 Double R Boulevard  
Reno, Nevada 89521  
Tel: 775-682-4300

- 1. To solicit comments for amended permanent regulations identified R005-11.**
  - To allow the Board to administer the certification exam to voice writers and provide clarification regarding the certification exam procedures and administrative requirements, specifically NAC 656.120, NAC 656.130, NAC 656.140, NAC 656.150, NAC 656.160.
- 2. Public comments.**
- 3. Next scheduled workshop for new or amended regulations.**

A copy of all materials relating to the proposed language will be provided to you at the workshop. If you wish to obtain a copy prior to the meeting, please log on to our website at [www.crptr.state.nv.us](http://www.crptr.state.nv.us) and click on "Archived Meetings and Agendas – November 3, 2011 Workshop Agenda w/Language" to print out a copy. Or, you may contact our office and request that a copy be sent to you.

Debbie Uehara - Executive Secretary  
Nevada Certified Court Reporters Board  
6628 Sky Pointe Drive, Suite 104  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89131  
Tel: 702-489-8787 Fax: 702-489-8788  
Email: [NVCCR@aol.com](mailto:NVCCR@aol.com)

This notice of Workshop to Solicit Comments on Proposed Permanent Regulations has been sent to all persons on the agency's mailing list for administrative regulations and posted at the following locations:

State of Nevada Certified Court Reporters Board  
6628 Sky Pointe Drive, Suite 104  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89131

Eighth Judicial District Court  
200 Lewis Avenue  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Second Judicial District Court  
75 Court Street  
Reno, Nevada 89520

Office of the Attorney General  
885 East Musser Street, #2030  
Carson City, Nevada 89701

Grant Sawyer Building  
555 East Washington Avenue  
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

**Date Posted: October 19, 2011**

**PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE  
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTERS' BOARD OF NEVADA**

**LCB File No. R005-11**

July 29, 2011

EXPLANATION – Matter in *italics* is new; matter in brackets [~~omitted material~~] is material to be omitted.

AUTHORITY: §§1-3, NRS 656.130 and 656.160; §4, NRS 656.130, 656.155, 656.160 and 656.180; §5, NRS 656.130, 656.150, 656.160 and 656.180.

A REGULATION relating to court reporters; revising provisions relating to the examination of an applicant for a certified court reporter's certificate; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Section 1.** NAC 656.120 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.120 1. The Executive Secretary of the Board shall assign a unique identification number to each application that is approved by the Board. An applicant must register on the day of the examination by presenting the original of the photo identification that accompanied his or her application and by signing the sheet for registration provided by the Board. The Board or a member of the staff of the Board will open the examination room on the day of the examination at 8 a.m. for registration. The Board or a member of the staff of the Board will provide a seat for the applicant in the examination room according to the identification number that is assigned to his or her application.

2. A member of the Board shall give oral instructions and remarks of introduction at approximately 9 a.m. on the day of the examination. Unless special arrangements are made

<sup>X</sup> pursuant to subsection 8 or 9, all applicants must register and be present for the oral instructions and remarks of introduction.

3. Each applicant must be on time to take the examination. An applicant who arrives late to take the examination:

- (a) Will be denied admission to the examination;
- (b) Forfeits any fees paid to take the examination; and
- (c) Must, if the applicant had registered, reregister before taking a subsequent examination.

4. The Board will administer two sections of the examination. An applicant who takes the examination for the first time must complete both sections of the examination. The name of the applicant or the applicant's identification number, or both, must not be written or otherwise appear on the examination provided by the Board.

5. The examination of an applicant and all other material relating to the examination must not be removed from the examination room during the administration of the examination. If an applicant removes the examination or material relating to the examination, the Board will fail the applicant for the purposes of the current application and will, if deemed appropriate by the Board, disqualify the applicant from participation in future examinations. After an applicant completes the examination, the applicant must return the examination and material to the registration desk.

6. An applicant shall not:

- (a) Ask questions during the examination except for questions that are necessary for clarification of the examination; or

(b) Leave the room in which the examination is administered without permission from a person who is monitoring the examination or a member of the staff of the Board who is present at the registration desk.

7. An applicant must bring to the examination room a pen or pencil, stenographic *or voice writing* equipment and any other equipment required by the Board. The Board will not:

(a) Provide stenographic , *voice writing* or any other equipment.

(b) Replace equipment for an applicant if the applicant's equipment malfunctions during the examination.

8. Upon the written request of an applicant with a disability at least 10 working days before the examination, the Executive Secretary of the Board shall make special arrangements for the administration of the examination to the applicant if those arrangements are:

(a) Feasible;

(b) Reasonable; and

(c) In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 to 12213, inclusive.

9. Upon the request of an applicant whose religious beliefs prevent the applicant from taking the examination on the date of the examination, the Executive Secretary of the Board shall make special arrangements for the administration of the examination to the applicant if the request is made before the date of the examination.

10. If an applicant cheats on the examination, the Board will expel the applicant from the examination room and fail the applicant.

11. Questions concerning the administration, procedure or content of the examination must be submitted in writing to the Board.

**Sec. 2.** NAC 656.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.130 1. After the presentation of the oral instructions and remarks of introduction by a member of the Board, the Board will provide for the administration of the written section of the examination. Unless special arrangements are made pursuant to subsection 8 of NAC 656.120, the Board will give an applicant 1 hour and 45 minutes to complete *and submit* the written section ~~to~~ *to the Board or a member of the staff of the Board*. A grade of at least 70 percent is required to pass the written section.

2. The written section of the examination consists of not less than 150 and not more than 200 questions that test the knowledge of the applicant in:

- (a) Vocabulary;
- (b) Punctuation;
- (c) Grammar;
- (d) Spelling;
- (e) Medical terminology;
- (f) Legal terminology;
- (g) The provisions of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure relating to the practice of court reporting;
- (h) The provisions of the Supreme Court Rules relating to the practice of court reporting; and
- (i) Any other subject relating to the duties of a court reporter specified by the Board.

↳ The Executive Secretary of the Board shall include material to prepare for the written section of the examination in the letter of admittance to the examination mailed to the applicant.

3. An applicant shall not refer to or otherwise use books, papers or other material during the written section of the examination. All books, papers and other such material must be placed on the floor during the examination.

**Sec. 3.** NAC 656.140 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.140 1. After the administration of the written section of the examination, the Board will administer the section of the examination that tests the ability of the applicant to transcribe. Before the section on transcription, an applicant will have a warm-up period of approximately 3 minutes to establish voice familiarity and clarity. An accuracy of 97.5 percent is required to pass the section on transcription.

2. The section on transcription consists of dictation of not less than 200 nor more than 225 words per minute. ~~{Before dictation begins, the}~~ **The** Board will provide to each applicant a glossary of proper names for use during the examination.

3. After completion of the dictation, the applicant shall transcribe the dictation. Unless special arrangements are made pursuant to subsection 8 of NAC 656.120, the Board will give each applicant 3 hours to complete **and submit** the transcription ~~{}~~ **to the Board or a member of the staff of the Board.** An applicant may use a dictionary. If an applicant elects not to complete the section on transcription, the applicant must sign an affidavit acknowledging that he or she forfeits the examination. An applicant who signs such an affidavit shall turn in all notes taken by the applicant **and all electronic storage media used by a device for voice writing that was used**

*by the applicant* during the examination and include on the notes *and electronic storage media* his or her name, the date and the identification number assigned to him or her.

4. An applicant shall prepare the transcription in the manner prescribed by the Board. In preparing the transcript, the applicant shall not :

(a) *Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b)*, use handwriting or any ~~electronic~~ *audio* recording device ~~+~~ ; *or*

(b) *If taking the examination through the use of voice writing, use handwriting or any system of manual or mechanical shorthand writing, but may use an audio recording of the applicant's voice.*

5. The Board will count each of the following as one error on the section on transcription:

- (a) One wrong word;
- (b) Misuse of the singular or plural of a word;
- (c) Misuse of the present or past tense of a word;
- (d) Omission of a word;
- (e) Addition of a word;
- (f) Transposition of a word;
- (g) A word that is spelled incorrectly, including, but not limited to, typographical errors and keyboard errors;
- (h) A name that is wrong;
- (i) A period that is omitted or placed incorrectly;
- (j) A question mark that is omitted or placed incorrectly;
- (k) A contraction of a word that is incorrectly typed as two words;

- (l) Two words that are incorrectly typed as a contraction;
- (m) Omission of a question or answer;
- (n) A number or figure that is incorrectly typed; and
- (o) A capital letter that is omitted if the Board determines that the capitalization is necessary.

6. The Board will not count the following as errors on the section on transcription:

- (a) Punctuation that is included if the Board determines that the punctuation is optional;
- (b) Words that are incorrectly capitalized if the Board determines that the capitalization is optional;
- (c) Use of paragraphs;
- (d) Crossing out words by use of a typewriter;
- (e) Typing dates with the use of ordinal or cardinal numbers;
- (f) Errors in the use of spacing; or
- (g) Use of hyphenation, including, but not limited to, compound words.

**Sec. 4.** NAC 656.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.150 1. Not more than 8 weeks after the administration of the examination, the Board will, at a public meeting held for that purpose, certify the score of each applicant who took the examination. As soon as practicable after conducting the public meeting, the Chair of the Board shall provide official written notice to each applicant of the results of the examination of the applicant. The results of an examination must not be given to an applicant by telephone.

2. After the Chair of the Board provides official notice of the results of the examinations, a successful applicant may submit an application for a certificate on a form provided by the Board. The application must include:



- (a) The fee required by NAC 656.200 for the original issuance of a certificate;
- (b) The residential address and telephone number of the applicant;
- (c) The business address and telephone number, if any, of the applicant;
- (d) The date on which the applicant successfully passed the examination;
- (e) In accordance with NRS 656.155, the statement prescribed by the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the Department of Health and Human Services pursuant to NRS 425.520; and
- (f) Complete answers to the questions contained on the form.

➤ Upon receipt of a complete application, the Board will process an application for a certificate.

3. A successful applicant shall not practice court reporting in this State until he or she receives a certificate from the Board.

4. An applicant may submit a written request to the Board to review his or her examination. ~~{Upon receipt of such a request, the Board will provide a copy of the section on transcription if the applicant pays the Board for the actual expenses incurred by the Board in photocopying the examination and mailing the examination to the applicant.}~~ An applicant may, within 45 days after the Board certifies the score of the applicant pursuant to subsection 1, review ~~{the written section}~~ **one or both sections** of the examination at the office of the Board. The Board will not mail ~~{the written}~~ **either** section of the examination to an applicant. An applicant may not copy or otherwise reproduce ~~{the written}~~ **either** section of the examination.

5. ***An applicant who wishes to appeal any aspect of the examination must do so in writing within 30 days after the Board certifies the score of the applicant pursuant to subsection 1.***

*6. For the purposes of NRS 233B.130, a decision of the Board regarding the appeal submitted pursuant to subsection 5 is a final decision.*

**Sec. 5.** NAC 656.160 is hereby amended to read as follows:

656.160 1. If an applicant fails one or both sections of the examination, the applicant is ineligible for a certificate. Such an applicant may retake the examination if he or she submits an application and the fee required for examination to the Board.

2. A passing grade on either section of the examination received by an applicant will be valid for the two immediately succeeding examinations administered by the Board. An applicant who has a passing grade on either section of the examination that is valid for the examination is required to be present for the oral instructions and remarks of introduction by a member of the Board, but is not required to be present for the section of the examination that he or she passed.

*3. An applicant who passes both sections of the examination must submit an application to the Board for a certificate within 2 years after the last date on which the applicant passed a section of the examination.*